

DRAFT

FOR DISCUSSION AT WORKSHOP MARCH 7, 2017

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

1 A bill to be entitled
2 An act relating to workers' compensation; amending s.
3 440.105, F.S.; removing a provision prohibiting
4 certain individuals from receiving fees or other
5 consideration for services related to Workers'
6 Compensation Law; amending s. 440.13, F.S.; defining
7 the term "respond"; requiring the Governor, or the
8 Chief Financial Officer in certain circumstances, to
9 appoint a member to fill a vacancy on a panel that
10 establishes certain workers' compensation schedules
11 within a specified timeframe; requiring such panel to
12 annually adopt statewide schedules of maximum
13 reimbursement allowances; authorizing such panel to
14 adopt a reimbursement methodology under certain
15 circumstances; revising and providing maximum
16 reimbursement methodologies to be incorporated in such
17 schedules; prohibiting dispensing practitioners from
18 possessing prescription medications in certain
19 circumstances; amending s. 440.15, F.S.; extending the
20 timeframe in which certain employees may receive
21 temporary total disability benefits; providing
22 conditions under which employees may receive permanent
23 impairment benefits; extending the timeframe in which
24 carriers must notify treating doctors of certain
25 requirements; deleting a provision related to

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

26 calculation of time; amending s. 440.192, F.S.;

27 revising a restriction on awarding attorney fees;

28 amending s. 440.25, F.S.; extending the timeframe in

29 which attorney fees attach; amending s. 440.34, F.S.;

30 revising provisions relating to awarding attorney

31 fees; providing that retainer agreements do not

32 require approval by a judge of compensation claims but

33 are required to be filed with the Office of the Judges

34 of Compensation Claims; conforming a cross-reference;

35 extending the timeframe in which attorney fees attach;

36 authorizing a judge of compensation claims to depart

37 from the attorney fees schedule under certain

38 circumstances; requiring a judge to consider certain

39 factors when awarding attorney fees that depart from

40 such schedule; defining the term "departure fee";

41 limiting the amount of such fee; providing for the

42 adjustment of such fee; amending s. 440.345, F.S.;

43 providing requirements for a carrier's report;

44 amending s. 440.491, F.S.; specifying that training

45 and education benefits provided to a claimant are not

46 in addition to the maximum number of weeks in which a

47 claimant may receive temporary benefits; amending s.

48 627.211, F.S.; providing requirements for a member or

49 subscriber of a rating organization to depart from the

50 rates set by such organization; providing an effective

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

Section 1. Paragraph (c) of subsection (3) of section 440.105, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

440.105 Prohibited activities; reports; penalties; limitations.—

(3) Whoever violates any provision of this subsection commits a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083.

~~(c) It is unlawful for any attorney or other person, in his or her individual capacity or in his or her capacity as a public or private employee, or for any firm, corporation, partnership, or association to receive any fee or other consideration or any gratuity from a person on account of services rendered for a person in connection with any proceedings arising under this chapter, unless such fee, consideration, or gratuity is approved by a judge of compensation claims or by the Deputy Chief Judge of Compensation Claims.~~

Section 2. Paragraph (d) of subsection (3) and subsection (12) of section 440.13, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

440.13 Medical services and supplies; penalty for violations; limitations.—

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

76 (3) PROVIDER ELIGIBILITY; AUTHORIZATION.—

77 (d) A carrier must respond, by telephone or in writing, to
78 a request for authorization from an authorized health care
79 provider by the close of the third business day after receipt of
80 the request. A carrier who fails to respond to a written request
81 for authorization for referral for medical treatment by the
82 close of the third business day after receipt of the request
83 consents to the medical necessity for such treatment. All such
84 requests must be made to the carrier. Notice to the carrier does
85 not include notice to the employer. For purposes of this
86 subsection, the term "respond" means to inform the parties that
87 a material action has been taken on the request, such as
88 authorizing or denying the request, requesting material
89 information from the provider, or referring the request for peer
90 review.

91 (12) CREATION OF THREE-MEMBER PANEL; GUIDES OF MAXIMUM
92 REIMBURSEMENT ALLOWANCES.—

93 (a)1. A three-member panel is created, consisting of the
94 Chief Financial Officer, or the Chief Financial Officer's
95 designee, and two members to be appointed by the Governor,
96 subject to confirmation by the Senate, one member who, on
97 account of present or previous vocation, employment, or
98 affiliation, shall be classified as a representative of
99 employers, the other member who, on account of previous
100 vocation, employment, or affiliation, shall be classified as a

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

101 representative of employees. The Governor shall appoint a new
102 member to the panel within 45 days after a vacancy occurs. If
103 the Governor fails to fill such vacancy, the Chief Financial
104 Officer shall appoint a new member to the panel within 45 days
105 after the expiration of the Governor's opportunity to fill the
106 vacancy, subject to confirmation by the Senate.

107 2. Annually, the panel shall ~~adopt~~ determine statewide
108 schedules of maximum reimbursement allowances for medically
109 necessary treatment, care, and attendance provided by
110 physicians, hospitals, ambulatory surgical centers, work-
111 hardening programs, pain programs, and durable medical
112 equipment, which incorporates the reimbursement methodologies
113 provided in this subsection. The panel may adopt a reimbursement
114 methodology for compensable medical care for which a
115 reimbursement methodology is not provided in this subsection.
116 ~~The maximum reimbursement allowances for inpatient hospital care~~
117 ~~shall be based on a schedule of per diem rates, to be approved~~
118 ~~by the three-member panel no later than March 1, 1994, to be~~
119 ~~used in conjunction with a precertification manual as determined~~
120 ~~by the department, including maximum hours in which an~~
121 ~~outpatient may remain in observation status, which shall not~~
122 ~~exceed 23 hours. All compensable charges for hospital outpatient~~
123 ~~care shall be reimbursed at 75 percent of usual and customary~~
124 ~~charges, except as otherwise provided by this subsection.~~
125 ~~Annually, the three-member panel shall adopt schedules of~~

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

126 ~~maximum reimbursement allowances for physicians, hospital~~
127 ~~inpatient care, hospital outpatient care, ambulatory surgical~~
128 ~~centers, work-hardening programs, and pain programs. An~~
129 ~~individual physician, hospital, ambulatory surgical center, pain~~
130 ~~program, or work-hardening program shall be reimbursed either~~
131 ~~the agreed-upon contract price or the maximum reimbursement~~
132 ~~allowance in the appropriate schedule.~~

133 (b) ~~It is the intent of the Legislature to increase the~~
134 ~~schedule of maximum reimbursement allowances for selected~~
135 ~~physicians effective January 1, 2004, and to pay for the~~
136 ~~increases through reductions in payments to hospitals. Revisions~~
137 ~~developed pursuant to this subsection are limited to the~~
138 ~~following:~~

139 1. Payments for outpatient physical, occupational, and
140 speech therapy provided by hospitals shall be reimbursed at
141 ~~reduced to~~ the schedule of maximum reimbursement allowances for
142 these services which apply ~~applies~~ to nonhospital providers.

143 2. Payments for scheduled outpatient nonemergency
144 radiological and clinical laboratory services that are not
145 provided in conjunction with a surgical procedure shall be
146 reimbursed at ~~reduced to~~ the schedule of maximum reimbursement
147 allowances for these services which applies to nonhospital
148 providers.

149 3.a. Compensable charges for scheduled hospital outpatient
150 care shall be reimbursed at 140 percent of the Medicare

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

151 outpatient prospective payment system, except as otherwise
152 provided by this subsection.

153 b. Nonscheduled hospital outpatient surgical services that
154 are not covered by Medicare shall be reimbursed at 75 percent of
155 the statewide average charge for that service in the division's
156 database of billed hospital charges over a consecutive 18-month
157 period within the 36 months before the adoption of the schedule,
158 as designated by the panel, if there are at least 50 bills for
159 the billed service represented in the data for the period.

160 Nonscheduled hospital outpatient surgical services that are not
161 covered by Medicare and are not present in the division's
162 database at the required frequency per period shall be
163 reimbursed at 75 percent of the hospital's actual billed charge
164 ~~Outpatient reimbursement for scheduled surgeries shall be~~
165 ~~reduced from 75 percent of charges to 60 percent of charges.~~

166 4.a. Compensable charges for scheduled hospital outpatient
167 surgery and ambulatory surgical center care shall be reimbursed
168 at 112 percent of the Medicare outpatient prospective payment
169 system, except as otherwise provided by this subsection.

170 b. Scheduled hospital outpatient surgery and ambulatory
171 surgical center services that are not covered by Medicare shall
172 be reimbursed at 60 percent of the statewide average charge for
173 that service in the division's database of billed hospital or
174 ambulatory surgical center charges, as applicable, over an 18-
175 month period within the 36 months before the adoption of the

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

176 schedule, as designated by the panel, if there are at least 50
177 bills for the billed service represented in the data for the
178 period. Scheduled hospital outpatient surgery and ambulatory
179 surgical center services that are not covered by Medicare and
180 are not present in the division's database at the required
181 frequency per period shall be reimbursed at 60 percent of the
182 facility's actual billed charge.

183 5. Maximum reimbursement for a physician licensed under
184 chapter 458 or chapter 459 shall be at ~~increased to~~ 110 percent
185 of the reimbursement allowed by Medicare, using appropriate
186 codes and modifiers or the medical reimbursement level adopted
187 by the ~~three-member~~ panel as of January 1, 2003, whichever is
188 greater.

189 6.5. Maximum reimbursement for surgical procedures shall
190 be at ~~increased to~~ 140 percent of the reimbursement allowed by
191 Medicare or the medical reimbursement level adopted by the
192 ~~three-member~~ panel as of January 1, 2003, whichever is greater.

193 7. Maximum reimbursement for inpatient hospital care shall
194 be based on a schedule of per diem rates approved by the panel
195 to be used in conjunction with a precertification manual as
196 determined by the department, including maximum hours in which
197 an outpatient may remain in observation status, which
198 reimbursement may not exceed 23 hours of observation, regardless
199 of whether more than 23 hours of observation occurred.

200 8. Maximum reimbursement for a physician, hospital,

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

ambulatory surgical center, work-hardening program, pain-management program, or durable medical equipment provider shall be the agreed-upon contract price or the maximum reimbursement allowance in the appropriate schedule adopted under paragraph (a).

(c) 1. ~~As to reimbursement for a prescription medication,~~
The reimbursement amount for a prescription medication shall be the average wholesale price plus \$4.18 for the dispensing fee. For repackaged or relabeled prescription medications dispensed by a dispensing practitioner as provided in s. 465.0276, the fee schedule for reimbursement shall be 112.5 percent of the average wholesale price, plus \$8.00 for the dispensing fee. For purposes of this subsection, the average wholesale price shall be calculated by multiplying the number of units dispensed times the per-unit average wholesale price set by the original manufacturer of the underlying drug dispensed by the practitioner, based upon the published manufacturer's average wholesale price published in the Medi-Span Master Drug Database as of the date of dispensing. All pharmaceutical claims submitted for repackaged or relabeled prescription medications must include the National Drug Code of the original manufacturer. Fees for pharmaceuticals and pharmaceutical services shall be reimbursable at the applicable fee schedule amount except where the employer or carrier, or a service company, third party administrator, or any entity acting on

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

226 | behalf of the employer or carrier directly contracts with the
227 | provider seeking reimbursement for a lower amount.

228 | 2. For prescription medication purchased under the
229 | requirements of this paragraph, a dispensing practitioner may
230 | not possess a prescription medication unless payment has been
231 | made by the practitioner, the practitioner's professional
232 | practice, or the practitioner's practice management company or
233 | employer to the supplying manufacturer, wholesaler, distributor,
234 | or drug repackager within 60 days after such practitioner takes
235 | possession of such medication.

236 | (d) Reimbursement for all fees and other charges for such
237 | treatment, care, and attendance, including treatment, care, and
238 | attendance provided by any hospital or other health care
239 | provider, ambulatory surgical center, work-hardening program, or
240 | pain program, must not exceed the amounts provided by the
241 | ~~uniform~~ schedule of maximum reimbursement allowances as
242 | determined by the panel or as otherwise provided in this
243 | section. This subsection also applies to independent medical
244 | examinations performed by health care providers under this
245 | chapter. In determining the ~~uniform~~ schedule, the panel shall
246 | first approve the data which it finds representative of
247 | prevailing charges in the state for similar treatment, care, and
248 | attendance of injured persons. Each health care provider, health
249 | care facility, ambulatory surgical center, work-hardening
250 | program, or pain program receiving workers' compensation

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

payments shall maintain records verifying their usual charges.
In establishing the ~~uniform~~ schedule of maximum reimbursement
allowances, the panel must consider:

1. The levels of reimbursement for similar treatment,
care, and attendance made by other health care programs or
third-party providers;

2. The impact upon cost to employers for providing a level
of reimbursement for treatment, care, and attendance which will
ensure the availability of treatment, care, and attendance
required by injured workers;

3. The financial impact of the reimbursement allowances
upon health care providers and health care facilities, including
trauma centers as defined in s. 395.4001, and its effect upon
their ability to make available to injured workers such
medically necessary remedial treatment, care, and attendance.
The ~~uniform~~ schedule of maximum reimbursement allowances must be
reasonable, must promote health care cost containment and
efficiency with respect to the workers' compensation health care
delivery system, and must be sufficient to ensure availability
of such medically necessary remedial treatment, care, and
attendance to injured workers; and

4. The most recent average maximum allowable rate of
increase for hospitals determined by the Health Care Board under
chapter 408.

(e) In addition to establishing the ~~uniform~~ schedule of

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

276 maximum reimbursement allowances, the panel shall:

277 1. Take testimony, receive records, and collect data to
278 evaluate the adequacy of the workers' compensation fee schedule,
279 nationally recognized fee schedules and alternative methods of
280 reimbursement to health care providers and health care
281 facilities for inpatient and outpatient treatment and care.

282 2. Survey health care providers and health care facilities
283 to determine the availability and accessibility of workers'
284 compensation health care delivery systems for injured workers.

285 3. Survey carriers to determine the estimated impact on
286 carrier costs and workers' compensation premium rates by
287 implementing changes to the carrier reimbursement schedule or
288 implementing alternative reimbursement methods.

289 4. Submit recommendations on or before January 15, 2017,
290 and biennially thereafter, to the President of the Senate and
291 the Speaker of the House of Representatives on methods to
292 improve the workers' compensation health care delivery system.

293 (f) The department, as requested, shall provide data to
294 the panel, including, but not limited to, utilization trends in
295 the workers' compensation health care delivery system. The
296 department shall provide the panel with an annual report
297 regarding the resolution of medical reimbursement disputes and
298 ~~any~~ actions pursuant to subsection (8). The department shall
299 provide administrative support and service to the panel to the
300 extent requested by the panel. ~~For prescription medication~~

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

~~purchased under the requirements of this subsection, a dispensing practitioner shall not possess such medication unless payment has been made by the practitioner, the practitioner's professional practice, or the practitioner's practice management company or employer to the supplying manufacturer, wholesaler, distributor, or drug repackager within 60 days of the dispensing practitioner taking possession of that medication.~~

Section 3. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2), paragraph (d) of subsection (3), paragraph (e) of subsection (4), and subsection (6) of section 440.15, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

440.15 Compensation for disability.—Compensation for disability shall be paid to the employee, subject to the limits provided in s. 440.12(2), as follows:

(2) TEMPORARY TOTAL DISABILITY.—

(a) Subject to subsection (7), in case of disability total in character but temporary in quality, 66 2/3 or 66.67 percent of the average weekly wages shall be paid to the employee during the continuance thereof, ~~not to exceed 104 weeks~~ except as provided in this subsection, subparagraph (3) (d) 3., and s. 440.12(1), not to exceed 260 weeks and ~~s. 440.14(3)~~. Once the employee reaches the maximum number of weeks allowed, or the employee reaches overall ~~the date of~~ maximum medical improvement, whichever occurs earlier, temporary disability benefits shall cease and the injured worker's permanent

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

326 impairment shall be determined. If the employee reaches the
327 maximum number of weeks allowed, but has not reached overall
328 maximum medical improvement, benefits shall be provided pursuant
329 to subparagraph (3)(d)3.

330 (3) PERMANENT IMPAIRMENT BENEFITS.—

331 (d) After the employee has been certified by a doctor as
332 having reached maximum medical improvement or 6 weeks before the
333 expiration of temporary benefits, whichever occurs earlier, the
334 certifying doctor shall evaluate the condition of the employee
335 and assign an impairment rating, using the impairment schedule
336 referred to in paragraph (b). If the certification and
337 evaluation are performed by a doctor other than the employee's
338 treating doctor, the certification and evaluation must be
339 submitted to the treating doctor, the employee, and the carrier
340 within 10 days after the evaluation. The treating doctor must
341 indicate to the carrier agreement or disagreement with the other
342 doctor's certification and evaluation.

343 1. The certifying doctor shall issue a written report to
344 the employee and the carrier certifying that maximum medical
345 improvement has been reached, stating the impairment rating to
346 the body as a whole, and providing any other information
347 required by the department by rule. The carrier shall establish
348 an overall maximum medical improvement date and permanent
349 impairment rating, based upon all such reports.

350 2. Within 14 days after the carrier's knowledge of each

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

351 maximum medical improvement date and impairment rating to the
352 body as a whole upon which the carrier is paying benefits, the
353 carrier shall report such maximum medical improvement date and,
354 when determined, the overall maximum medical improvement date
355 and associated impairment rating to the department in a format
356 as set forth in department rule. If the employee has not been
357 certified as having reached overall maximum medical improvement
358 before the expiration of 254 ~~98~~ weeks after the date temporary
359 disability benefits begin to accrue, the carrier shall notify
360 the treating doctor of the requirements of this section.

361 3. If an employee receiving benefits under subsection (2)
362 has not reached overall maximum medical improvement before
363 receiving the maximum number of weeks of temporary disability
364 benefits, the maximum number of weeks are extended for up to an
365 additional 26 weeks. If the employee has not reached overall
366 maximum medical improvement after receiving the additional weeks
367 allowed under this subparagraph, a judge of compensation claims,
368 upon petition, must determine the employee's current eligibility
369 for benefits under subsection (1).

370 4. If an employee receiving benefits under subsection (4)
371 has not reached overall maximum medical improvement before
372 receiving the maximum number of weeks of temporary disability
373 benefits, the employee shall receive benefits under this
374 subsection in accordance with the greatest single impairment
375 rating assigned to the employee. Impairment benefits received

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

376 under this subparagraph shall be credited against indemnity
377 benefits subsequently due.

378 (4) TEMPORARY PARTIAL DISABILITY.—

379 (e) Such benefits shall be paid during the continuance of
380 such disability, ~~not to exceed a period of 104 weeks,~~ as
381 provided by this subsection and subsection (2), not to exceed
382 260 weeks, except as provided in subparagraph (3)(d)4. ~~Once the~~
383 ~~injured employee reaches the maximum number of weeks, temporary~~
384 ~~disability benefits cease and the injured worker's permanent~~
385 ~~impairment must be determined.~~ If the employee is terminated
386 from postinjury employment based on the employee's misconduct,
387 temporary partial disability benefits are not payable as
388 provided for in this section. The department shall by rule
389 specify forms and procedures governing the method and time for
390 payment of temporary disability benefits for dates of accidents
391 before January 1, 1994, and for dates of accidents on or after
392 January 1, 1994.

393 (6) EMPLOYEE REFUSES EMPLOYMENT.—If an injured employee
394 refuses employment suitable to the capacity thereof, offered to
395 or procured therefor, such employee shall not be entitled to any
396 compensation at any time during the continuance of such refusal
397 unless at any time in the opinion of the judge of compensation
398 claims such refusal is justifiable. ~~Time periods for the payment~~
399 ~~of benefits in accordance with this section shall be counted in~~
400 ~~determining the limitation of benefits as provided for in~~

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

paragraphs (2) (a), (3) (c), and (4) (b).

Section 4. Subsection (7) of section 440.192, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

440.192 Procedure for resolving benefit disputes.—

(7) Notwithstanding ~~the provisions of s. 440.34~~, a judge of compensation claims may not award attorney ~~attorney's~~ fees payable by the carrier for services expended or costs incurred before ~~prior to~~ the filing of a petition ~~that does not meet the requirements of this section~~.

Section 5. Paragraph (j) of subsection (4) of section 440.25, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

440.25 Procedures for mediation and hearings.—

(4)

(j) A judge of compensation claims may not award interest on unpaid medical bills and the amount of such bills may not be used to calculate the amount of interest awarded. Regardless of the date benefits were initially requested, attorney ~~attorney's~~ fees do not attach under this subsection until 60 ~~30~~ days after the date the carrier ~~or self-insured employer~~ receives the petition.

Section 6. Section 440.34, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

440.34 Attorney ~~Attorney's~~ fees; costs.—

(1) A judge of compensation claims may award attorney fees payable to the claimant pursuant to this section to be paid by

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

426 | the carrier ~~A fee, gratuity, or other consideration may not be~~
 427 | ~~paid for a claimant in connection with any proceedings arising~~
 428 | ~~under this chapter, unless approved by the judge of compensation~~
 429 | ~~claims or court having jurisdiction over such proceedings.~~
 430 | Attorney fees awarded ~~Any attorney's fee approved~~ by a judge of
 431 | compensation claims for benefits secured on behalf of a claimant
 432 | must equal ~~to~~ 20 percent of the first \$5,000 of the amount of
 433 | the benefits secured, 15 percent of the next \$5,000 of the
 434 | amount of the benefits secured, 10 percent of the remaining
 435 | amount of the benefits secured to be provided during the first
 436 | 10 years after the date the claim is filed, and 5 percent of the
 437 | benefits secured after 10 years. ~~A The judge of compensation~~
 438 | ~~claims shall not approve a compensation order, a joint~~
 439 | ~~stipulation for lump-sum settlement, a stipulation or agreement~~
 440 | ~~between a claimant and his or her attorney, or any other~~
 441 | ~~agreement related to benefits under this chapter which provides~~
 442 | ~~for an attorney's fee in excess of the amount permitted by this~~
 443 | ~~section. The judge of compensation claims is not required to~~
 444 | ~~approve any~~ retainer agreement between the claimant and his or
 445 | her attorney is not subject to approval by a judge of
 446 | compensation claims but must be filed with the Office of the
 447 | Judges of Compensation Claims. Attorney fees are a lien upon
 448 | compensation payable to the claimant, notwithstanding s. 440.22.
 449 | A retainer agreement may not place any portion of the employee's
 450 | compensation into an escrow account until benefits are secured.

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

451 ~~The retainer agreement as to fees and costs may not be for~~
452 ~~compensation in excess of the amount allowed under this~~
453 ~~subsection or subsection (7).~~

454 (2) In awarding a claimant's attorney fees ~~attorney's fee~~,
455 a ~~the~~ judge of compensation claims may ~~shall~~ consider only those
456 benefits secured by the attorney. ~~An Attorney is not entitled to~~
457 ~~attorney's fees~~ are not due for representation in any issue that
458 was ripe, due, and owing and that reasonably could have been
459 addressed, but was not addressed, during the pendency of other
460 issues for the same injury. The amount, statutory basis, and
461 type of benefits obtained through legal representation shall be
462 listed on all attorney ~~attorney's~~ fees awarded by a ~~the~~ judge of
463 compensation claims. For purposes of this section, the term
464 "benefits secured" does not include future medical benefits to
465 be provided on any date more than 5 years after the date the
466 petition claim ~~claim~~ is filed. In the event an offer to settle an
467 issue pending before a judge of compensation claims, including
468 attorney ~~attorney's~~ fees ~~as provided for in this section~~, is
469 communicated in writing to the claimant or the claimant's
470 attorney at least 30 days before ~~prior to~~ the trial date on such
471 issue, for purposes of calculating the amount of attorney
472 ~~attorney's~~ fees to be taxed against the ~~employer or~~ carrier, the
473 term "benefits secured" includes ~~shall be deemed to include~~ only
474 that amount awarded to the claimant above the amount specified
475 in the offer to settle. If multiple issues are pending before a

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

476 ~~the~~ judge of compensation claims, said offer of settlement must
477 ~~shall~~ address each issue pending and ~~shall~~ state explicitly
478 whether or not the offer on each issue is severable. The written
479 offer must ~~shall~~ also unequivocally state whether or not it
480 includes medical witness fees and expenses and all other costs
481 associated with the claim.

482 (3) If a ~~any~~ party should prevail in ~~any~~ proceedings
483 before a judge of compensation claims or court, there shall be
484 taxed against the nonprevailing party the reasonable costs of
485 such proceedings, not to include attorney ~~attorney's~~ fees. A
486 claimant is responsible for the payment of her or his own
487 attorney ~~attorney's~~ fees, except that a claimant is entitled to
488 recover attorney fees ~~an attorney's fee~~ in an amount equal to
489 the amount provided for in subsection (1) or subsection (5), ~~but~~
490 not both, ~~(7)~~ from a carrier ~~or employer~~:

491 (a) Against whom she or he successfully asserts a petition
492 for medical benefits only, if the claimant has not filed or is
493 not entitled to file at such time a claim for disability,
494 permanent impairment, ~~wage-loss~~, or death benefits, arising out
495 of the same accident;

496 (b) In a ~~any~~ case in which the ~~employer or~~ carrier files a
497 response to petition denying benefits with the Office of the
498 Judges of Compensation Claims and the injured person has
499 employed an attorney in the successful prosecution of the
500 petition;

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

501 (c) In a proceeding in which a carrier ~~or employer~~ denies
502 that an accident occurred for which compensation benefits are
503 payable, and the claimant prevails on the issue of
504 compensability; or

505 (d) In cases in which ~~where~~ the claimant successfully
506 prevails in proceedings filed under s. 440.24 or s. 440.28.

507
508 Regardless of the date benefits were initially requested,
509 attorney ~~attorney's~~ fees do ~~shall~~ not attach under this
510 subsection until 60 ~~30~~ days after the date the carrier ~~or~~
511 ~~employer, if self-insured,~~ receives the petition.

512 ~~(4) In such cases in which the claimant is responsible for~~
513 ~~the payment of her or his own attorney's fees, such fees are a~~
514 ~~lien upon compensation payable to the claimant, notwithstanding~~
515 ~~s. 440.22.~~

516 (4) ~~(5)~~ If ~~any~~ proceedings are had for review of a ~~any~~
517 claim, award, or compensation order before any court, the court
518 may, in its discretion, award the injured employee or dependent
519 attorney fees ~~an attorney's fee~~ to be paid by the ~~employer or~~
520 ~~carrier, in its discretion, which shall be paid as the court may~~
521 ~~direct.~~

522 ~~(6) A judge of compensation claims may not enter an order~~
523 ~~approving the contents of a retainer agreement that permits~~
524 ~~placing any portion of the employee's compensation into an~~
525 ~~escrow account until benefits have been secured.~~

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

526 (5) (a) ~~(7)~~ A judge of compensation claims may depart from
527 the amount set forth in subsection (1) upon a finding that the
528 attorney fees provided for in that subsection are less than 50
529 percent or greater than 125 percent of the average hourly rate
530 that attorneys customarily charge in the same locality for
531 similar legal services when the amount allowed under subsection
532 (1) is converted to an hourly rate. A departure fee under this
533 subsection is in place of, not in addition to, the amount
534 allowed under subsection (1).

535 (b) If a departure is permitted pursuant to paragraph (a),
536 a judge of compensation claims shall consider the following
537 factors when departing from the amount set forth in subsection
538 (1):

539 1. The time and labor required, the novelty and difficulty
540 of the questions involved, and the skill required to properly
541 perform the legal services.

542 2. The fee customarily charged in the same locality for
543 similar legal services.

544 3. The amount involved in the controversy and the benefits
545 awarded to the claimant.

546 4. The time limits imposed by the circumstances.

547 5. The experience, reputation, and ability of the attorney
548 performing the legal services.

549 6. The contingency or certainty of a fee awarded under
550 this section.

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

551 (c) Based on the considerations of the factors in
552 paragraph (b), a judge of compensation claims shall determine:

553 1. The hourly rate used to compute the departure fee
554 awarded under this subsection, in \$10 increments, which may not
555 exceed the hourly rate limit under paragraph (e).

556 2. The number of hours necessary for the attorney to
557 obtain the benefits secured, to be referred to as "attorney
558 hours."

559
560 A judge of compensation claims is not limited to an hourly rate
561 or number of hours proposed by the parties. As used in this
562 subsection, the term "departure fee" means the fee determined by
563 a judge of compensation claims, if permitted under paragraph
564 (a), in place of the fee allowed under subsection (1) when
565 attorney fees are due under this section.

566 (d) Using the hourly rate and number of attorney hours
567 determined under paragraph (c), a judge of compensation claims
568 must determine the amount of the departure fee under this
569 subsection by multiplying the hourly rate by the number of
570 attorney hours. The claimant is responsible for attorney fees
571 that exceed the departure fee pursuant to his or her retainer
572 agreement.

573 (e) From July 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, the
574 hourly rate limit applicable to departure fees under this
575 subsection is \$250. On January 1, 2018, and annually each

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

January 1 thereafter, this amount shall be adjusted in proportion to the percentage change between the statewide average weekly wage in effect on the immediately previous January 1 and the statewide average weekly wage in effect for the applicable year rounded to the nearest dollar. For purposes of this paragraph, the term "statewide average weekly wage" has the same meaning as in s. 440.12(2). ~~If an attorney's fee is owed under paragraph (3)(a), the judge of compensation claims may approve an alternative attorney's fee not to exceed \$1,500 only once per accident, based on a maximum hourly rate of \$150 per hour, if the judge of compensation claims expressly finds that the attorney's fee amount provided for in subsection (1), based on benefits secured, fails to fairly compensate the attorney for disputed medical-only claims as provided in paragraph (3)(a) and the circumstances of the particular case warrant such action.~~

Section 7. Section 440.345, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

440.345 Reporting of attorney ~~attorney's~~ fees.—All fees paid to attorneys for services rendered under this chapter shall be reported to the Office of the Judges of Compensation Claims as the Division of Administrative Hearings requires by rule. A carrier must specify in its report the total amount of attorney fees paid for and the total number of attorney hours spent on services related to the defense of petitions, and the total amount of attorney fees paid for services unrelated to the

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

defense of petitions.

Section 8. Paragraph (b) of subsection (6) of section 440.491, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

440.491 Reemployment of injured workers; rehabilitation.—

(6) TRAINING AND EDUCATION.—

(b) When an employee who has attained maximum medical improvement is unable to earn at least 80 percent of the compensation rate and requires training and education to obtain suitable gainful employment, the ~~employer or~~ carrier shall pay the employee additional training and education temporary total compensation benefits while the employee receives such training and education for a period not to exceed 26 weeks, which period may be extended for an additional 26 weeks or less, if such extended period is determined to be necessary and proper by a judge of compensation claims. The benefits provided under this paragraph are ~~shall~~ not ~~be~~ in addition to the maximum number of ~~104~~ weeks as specified in s. 440.15(2). However, a carrier ~~or~~ ~~employer~~ is not precluded from voluntarily paying additional temporary total disability compensation beyond that period. If an employee requires temporary residence at or near a facility or an institution providing training and education which is located more than 50 miles away from the employee's customary residence, the reasonable cost of board, lodging, or travel must be borne by the department from the Workers' Compensation Administration Trust Fund established by s. 440.50. An employee

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

who refuses to accept training and education that is recommended by the vocational evaluator and considered necessary by the department will forfeit any additional training and education benefits and any additional compensation ~~payment for lost wages~~ under this chapter. The carrier shall notify the injured employee of the availability of training and education benefits as specified in this chapter. The Department of Financial Services shall include information regarding the eligibility for training and education benefits in informational materials specified in ss. 440.207 and 440.40.

Section 9. Subsection (1) of section 627.211, Florida Statutes, is amended, and subsection (7) is added to that section, to read:

627.211 Deviations and departures; workers' compensation and employer's liability insurances.—

(1) Except as provided in subsection (7), every member or subscriber to a rating organization shall, as to workers' compensation or employer's liability insurance, adhere to the filings made on its behalf by such organization; except that any such insurer may make written application to the office for permission to file a uniform percentage decrease or increase to be applied to the premiums produced by the rating system so filed for a kind of insurance, for a class of insurance which is found by the office to be a proper rating unit for the application of such uniform percentage decrease or increase, or

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

for a subdivision of workers' compensation or employer's liability insurance:

(a) Comprised of a group of manual classifications which is treated as a separate unit for ratemaking purposes; or

(b) For which separate expense provisions are included in the filings of the rating organization.

Such application shall specify the basis for the modification and shall be accompanied by the data upon which the applicant relies. A copy of the application and data shall be sent simultaneously to the rating organization.

(7) Without approval of the office, a member or subscriber to a rating organization may depart from the filings made on its behalf by a rating organization for a period of 12 months by a uniform decrease of up to 5 percent to be applied uniformly to the premiums resulting from the approved rates for the policy period. The member or subscriber must file an informational departure statement with the office within 30 days after initial use of such departure specifying the percentage of the departure from the approved rates and an explanation of how the departure will be applied. If the departure is to be applied over a subsequent 12-month period, the member or subscriber must file a supplemental informational departure statement pursuant to this subsection at least 30 days before the end of the current period. If the office determines that a departure violates the

BILL

ORIGINAL

YEAR

applicable principles for ratemaking under ss. 627.062 and
627.072, would result in predatory pricing, or imperils the
financial condition of the member or subscriber, the office must
issue an order specifying its findings and stating the time
period within which the departure expires, which must be within
a reasonable time period after the order is issued. The order
does not affect an insurance contract or policy made or issued
before the departure expiration period set forth in the order.

Section 10. This act shall take effect July 1, 2017.